
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (1) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 20th August, 2015 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 5, 6 & 7 - 17th Floor, City Hall 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Tim Mitchell (Chairman) 
Nick Evans 
Murad Gassanly 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 9.00am.  If you have 
a disability and require any special assistance please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Jonathan Deacon. 
 
Email: jdeacon@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 2783 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report any changes 
to the membership.  
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal or 
prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda.  
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   22-25 KINGLY STREET AND 14-16 FOUBERTS PLACE, W1 (Pages 1 - 
54) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 
Stress 
Area 

Site Name 
and 
Address 

Application Licensing 
Reference 
Number 

1. West End / 
West End  

22-25 
Kingly 
Street and 
14-16 
Fouberts 
Place, W1 

Variation 15/04186/LIPV 

 

  
 

 

2.   RUPERT STREET CAFE BAR, 50 RUPERT STREET, W1 (Pages 55 - 
312) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 
Stress 
Area 

Site Name 
and 
Address 

Application Licensing 
Reference 
Number 

2. West End / 
West End  

Rupert 
Street 
Café Bar, 
50 Rupert 
Street, W1 

New 15/02201/LIPN 

 

 



 
 

 

  
 

3.   RAGING BALL SNOOKER AND SPORTS CLUB (BASEMENT), 
159-163 EDGWARE ROAD, W2 

(Pages 313 - 
366) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 
Stress 
Area 

Site Name 
and 
Address 

Application Licensing 
Reference 
Number 

3. Hyde Park 
/ 
Edgware 
Road  

Raging 
Ball 
Snooker 
and Sports 
Club 
(Basement
), 159-163 
Edgware 
Road, W2 

New 15/04057/LIPN 

 

  
 

 

4.   PIX, 16 BATEMAN STREET, W1 (Pages 367 - 
410) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 
Stress 
Area 

Site Name 
and 
Address 

Application Licensing 
Reference 
Number 

4. West End / 
West End  

Pix, 16 
Bateman 
Street, W1 

Variation 15/05202/LIPV 

 

  
 

 

5.   SAFA RESTAURANT, FORSET COURT, 22-23 NUTFORD 
PLACE, W1 

(Pages 411 - 
456) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 
Stress 
Area 

Site Name 
and 
Address 

Application Licensing 
Reference 
Number 

5. Bryanston 
And Dorset 
Square / 
Edgware 
Road  

Safa 
Restaurant
, Forset 
Court, 22-
23 Nutford 
Place, W1 

New 15/04997/LIPN 

 

  
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

Charlie Parker 
Chief Executive 
14 August 2015 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The City of Westminster statement of licensing policy applies to all applications where 
relevant representations have been made. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to 
have regard to the City of Westminster statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of state under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
PERMITTED TEMPORARY ACTIVITIES 

 
The licensee of any premises is entitled under the Licensing Act 2003 to apply for 
permission to hold temporary events, authorising licensable activities instead of or in 
addition to any activities that may be authorised by a premises licence, subject to the 
following restrictions: 

 
1) No more than 12 events over a total of 21 days may be held at any one premises in any 

year 
 

2) Each event must last for no more than 168 hours 
 

3) There must be 24 hours between each event 
 

4) The number of people at each event must be less than 500.  
 

A Temporary Event Notice for each event (a TEN) is required to be given to the licensing 
authority, the police and environmental health service no later than 10 working days 
before the event for a ‘standard’ TEN or 5 to 9 working days before the event is due to 
begin for a ‘late’ TEN. The licensing authority is required to send an acknowledgement by 
the next working day. 
 
Once a Temporary Event Notice is given  the police and environmental health service 
have a right to object to the event if they are satisfied  that the event will undermine any of 
the licensing objectives of preventing crime and disorder, prevention of public nuisance, 
protection of children from harm and promotion of public safety.  They must serve an 
objection notice stating their reasons as to why the objectives would be undermined to the 
licensing authority and the premises user within 3 working days of receiving a copy of the 
TEN. The licensing authority is required to hold a hearing and may issue a counter notice 
which will prevent the event taking place. 



 
 

 

LIVE MUSIC ACT 2012 
 
The Live Music Act amends the Licensing Act 2003 by: 

 
 removing the licensing requirement for amplified live music taking place between 

8am and 11pm before audiences of no more than 200 persons on premises 
authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises (at a time when those premises are open for the 
purposes of being used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises), 
subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose conditions about live music 
following a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
  

 removing the licensing requirement for amplified live music taking place between 
8am and 11pm before audiences of no more than 200 persons in workplaces not 
otherwise licensed under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late 
night refreshment)  

 
 removing the licensing requirement for unamplified live music taking place between 

8am and 11pm in any place, subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose 
conditions about live music following a review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate relating to premises authorised to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises 

  
 removing the licensing requirement for the provision of entertainment facilities 

  
 widens the licensing exemption for live music that is integral to a performance of 

Morris dancing or dancing of a similar type, so that the exemption applies to both 
live or recorded music instead of just unamplified live music in that instance. 



 
 

 

CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



page 1

Agenda Item 1



page 2



page 3



page 4



page 5



page 6



page 7



page 8



page 9



page 10



page 11



page 12



page 13



page 14



page 15



page 16



page 17



page 18



page 19



page 20



page 21



page 22



page 23



page 24



page 25



page 26



page 27



page 28



page 29



page 30



page 31



page 32



page 33



page 34



page 35



page 36



page 37



page 38



page 39



page 40



page 41



page 42



page 43



page 44



page 45



page 46



page 47



page 48



page 49



page 50



page 51



page 52



page 53



page 54



page 55

Agenda Item 2



page 56



page 57



page 58



page 59



page 60



page 61



page 62



page 63



page 64



page 65



page 66



page 67



page 68



page 69



page 70



page 71



page 72



page 73



page 74



page 75



page 76



page 77



page 78



page 79



page 80



page 81



page 82



page 83



page 84



page 85



page 86



page 87



page 88



page 89



page 90



page 91



page 92



page 93



page 94



page 95



page 96



page 97



page 98



page 99



page 100



page 101



page 102



page 103



page 104



page 105



page 106



page 107



page 108



page 109



page 110



page 111



page 112



page 113



page 114



page 115



page 116



page 117



page 118



page 119



page 120



page 121



page 122



page 123



page 124



page 125



page 126



page 127



page 128



page 129



page 130



page 131



page 132



page 133



page 134



page 135



page 136



page 137



page 138



page 139



page 140



page 141



page 142



page 143



page 144



page 145



page 146



page 147



page 148



page 149



page 150



page 151



page 152



page 153



page 154



page 155



page 156



page 157



page 158



page 159



page 160



page 161



page 162



page 163



page 164



page 165



page 166



page 167



page 168



page 169



page 170



page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



page 173



page 174



page 175



page 176



page 177



page 178



page 179



page 180



page 181



page 182



page 183



page 184



page 185



page 186



page 187



page 188



page 189



page 190



page 191



page 192



page 193



page 194



page 195



page 196



page 197



page 198



page 199



page 200



page 201



page 202



page 203



page 204



page 205



page 206



page 207



page 208



page 209



page 210



page 211



page 212



page 213



page 214



page 215



page 216



page 217



page 218



page 219



page 220



page 221



page 222



page 223



page 224



page 225



page 226



page 227



page 228



page 229



page 230



page 231



page 232



page 233



page 234



page 235



page 236



page 237



page 238



page 239



page 240



page 241



page 242



page 243



page 244



page 245



page 246



page 247



page 248



page 249



page 250



page 251



page 252



page 253



page 254



page 255



This page is intentionally left blank



page 257



page 258



page 259



page 260



page 261



page 262



page 263



page 264



page 265



page 266



page 267



page 268



page 269



page 270



page 271



page 272



page 273



page 274



page 275



page 276



page 277



page 278



page 279



page 280



page 281



page 282



page 283



page 284



page 285



page 286



page 287



page 288



page 289



page 290



page 291



page 292



page 293



page 294



page 295



page 296



page 297



page 298



page 299



page 300



page 301



page 302



page 303



page 304



page 305



page 306



page 307



page 308



page 309



page 310



page 311



page 312



page 313

Agenda Item 3



page 314



page 315



page 316



page 317



page 318



page 319



page 320



page 321



page 322



page 323



page 324



page 325



page 326



page 327



page 328



page 329



page 330



page 331



page 332



page 333



page 334



page 335



page 336



page 337



page 338



page 339



page 340



page 341



page 342



page 343



page 344



page 345



page 346



page 347



page 348



page 349



page 350



page 351



page 352



page 353



page 354



page 355



page 356



page 357



page 358



page 359



page 360



page 361



page 362



page 363



page 364



page 365



page 366



page 367

Agenda Item 4



page 368



page 369



page 370



page 371



page 372



page 373



page 374



page 375



page 376



page 377



page 378



page 379



page 380



page 381



page 382



page 383



page 384



page 385



page 386



page 387



page 388



page 389



page 390



page 391



page 392



page 393



page 394



page 395



page 396



page 397



page 398



page 399



page 400



page 401



page 402



page 403



page 404



page 405



page 406



page 407



page 408



page 409



page 410



             
 City of Westminster 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No: 
 

 

   

Licensing Ref No:  
  

15/04997/LIPN 
 

   
 

Date: 
 

 
20 August 2015 

   

Classification: 
  

For General Release 
 

   

 
Title of Report: 

 

 Safa Restaurant 
Forset Court 
22-23 Nutford Place 
London W1H 5YQ 

   
 

Report of: 
 

 
Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   
 

Policy context: 
 

 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing 
Policy 

   
 

Financial summary: 
 

  
None 
 

   
 

Report Author: 
 

 Mr Steve Rowe 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   
 

Contact Details: 
 

 Telephone: 020 7641 7825 
E-mail: srowe@westminster.gov.uk 

Licensing Sub-
Committee Report 

 
page 411

Agenda Item 5



APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
Application 
Type: 

A new premises licence application under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Applicant: Ali Heydari Date 
Application 
Received: 

22 June 2015 

Premises 
Name and  
Address: 

Safa Restaurant 
Forset Court 
22-23 Nutford Place 
London 
W1H 5YQ 

Ward Name: 
 Bryanston And Dorset Square Stress Area: Edgware Road 

Description of 
Premises: 

The premises currently operate as a Ground Floor restaurant, with a premises 
licence (06/13160/WCCMAP), for the sale by retail of alcohol and the provision of 
late night refreshments. It is proposed that, if the new premises licence is granted, 
then the current premises licence will be surrendered to Westminster City Council. 

Note: Where the committee is minded to grant the licence it will be granted subject to the mandatory 
conditions and conditions consistent with the operating schedule modified to such extent as the 
authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives detailed in Appendix D to 
this report. 
 
Proposed Licensable Activities, Proposed 
Hours: 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday: 12:00 to 01:30  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 01:00  
 
 
Supply of Alcohol (On the Premises) 
 Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00 
 Sunday: 12:00 to 01:00  
 
Opening Hours 
Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00 
Sunday: 12:00 to 01:00  
 
Non Standard Timings: 
 
Alcohol may be sold or supplied on New 
Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted 
hours the following day. 
 
During the month of Ramadan, it is proposed 
that opening hours and licensable activities 
(except sale of alcohol) will continue until 
sunrise, when the provision of late night 
refreshments would also cease. 

Existing Licensable Activities and Hours on 
Licence 06/13160/WCCMAP 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Private Entertainment 
 Unrestricted 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 00:30 
    Sunday:23:00 to 00:00  
 
Supply of Alcohol(On the Premises) 
 Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 00:00 
 Sunday: 12:00 to 23:30  
 
Opening Hours 
Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 00:30 
Sunday: 12:00 to 00:00  
 
Non Standard Timings: 
 
Extension of hours for late night refreshment 
and sale of alcohol from the end of permitted 
hours on New Year’s Eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
Not currently permitted 
 
 
 

 
page 412



 
 
1A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1D 
 
 
 
 

Relevant representations and policies applicable 
 

The Environmental Health Service has made an adverse 
representation against this application as the hours requested for the 
Supply of Alcohol, the Provision of Late Night Refreshment, 
Regulated Entertainment will have the likely effect of causing an 
increase in Public Nuisance within the Edgware Road Stress Area. 
The hour for sunrise during Ramadan is not a fixed time and may 
change from day to day. 
 
The Metropolitan Police service has made an adverse representation 
against this application stating that if granted the application would 
undermine the licensing objectives. The venue is situated within the 
Edgware Road Stress Area, a locality where this is traditionally high 
crime and disorder. There are concerns that this application will 
cause further policing problems in an already demanding area and 
add to the cumulative impact. 
 
The Metropolitan Police Service have proposed conditions that the 
applicant has agreed however they wish to maintain their 
representation.  
 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of 
Licensing Policy apply: 
 
Policy STR1 applies: 

(i) It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in 
the Stress Areas for: pubs and bars; fast food premises, and 
premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii)  Applications for other licensable activities in the Stress Areas 
will be subject to other policies and must demonstrate that they will 
not add to cumulative impact in the Stress Areas. 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to other 
policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this 
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies. 

Policy RNT2 applies: 

Applications will be granted subject to other policies and subject to 
the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it 
can be demonstrated that they will not add to cumulative impact in 
the Stress Areas. 
 
The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant in  
part this proposal, having taken into account the representations  
received and Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. The  
decision taken should promote the licensing objectives of:  
 

• prevention of public nuisance,  

References / Notes 
 
Environmental Health 

Service 
Representation  

 
 
 
 
 

Metropolitan Police 
Service 

representation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policies applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary 
 

 
page 413



 
 
 
1E 
 

• prevention of crime & disorder,  
• public safety and  
• protection of children from harm. 

Where the committee is minded to grant the licence it will be granted 
subject to the mandatory conditions and conditions consistent with 
the operating schedule modified to such extent as the authority 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
Proposed conditions are set out detailed in Appendix B to this 
report. 

Current 
Licensing 
Position 

The premises currently operate as a Ground Floor restaurant, with a premises 
licence (06/13160/WCCMAP).  Please refer to Appendix A 
 

Residential 
Density: 

192 of the units within a 75m radius of the premises are residential or proposed 
residential, refer to Appendix C.  
 

Planning 
Position: 

Licensing cannot confirm the planning usage of this premises. 

List of 
Appendices: 

A – Premises Licence History  
B -  Proposed Conditions 
C – Residential Map and list of premises in the vicinity 

 
 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 
• Licensing Act 2003 
• City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy (7th January 2011) 
• Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (March 2015) 
• Application form 
• Plans 
• Representations received 
• Photos 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 414



 
 
 

Appendix A 
 

Licence & Appeal History  
 
 
 
Application 
 

 
Details of Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

Conversion Application 
 
05/08395/LIPC 
(06/13160/WCCMAP) 

Application to convert 
the Justices on Licence 

19.09.2005 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

 
There is no appeal history 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 415



 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED 
BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing Act 
2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence subject 
to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, or 
add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed as 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an interested 
party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service but reflect the 
positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not necessarily been 
agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1 No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor 

in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does 

not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds 

a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging 
the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

 
page 416



(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness 
in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability). 
 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an 

age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or 
supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure 

that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age 
verification policy. 

 
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 

18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on 
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of 
birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 
customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence in 
respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 or over 
who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  For premises with 
a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity 
that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
page 417



 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence - 

   
(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol 

under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in 
a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph) 

not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be 
the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph 

8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on 
the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value 
added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 
second day. 

 
Consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes 

before the scheduled collection times. 
 

10. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or placed in 
outside areas between (23.00) hours and (08.00) hours on the following day. 
 

11. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or private 
carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers made readily available 
to customers who will be encouraged to use such services. 
 

12. The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (including staff) shall not 
exceed 40 persons. 
 

13. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of 
local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly 
 

14. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of 
the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
page 418



 
 
Proposed by Police and agreed by the applicant 
 
15. The premises shall install and maintain a CCTV system as per the minimum requirements 

of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry and exit points will be covered 
enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV 
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and 
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored 
for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the 
preceding 31 day period 

  
16. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open to the public.  
This staff member shall be able to show Police recent data or footage with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested.  

  
17. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant (i) in which customers are shown to their 

table, (ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, (iii) which 
provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises and 
are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery, (iv) which do not 
provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption, (v) which do 
not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and (vi) where alcohol shall 
not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to persons who are 
seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there and provided 
always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

   
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal. 

  
18. During the month of Ramadan late night refreshment may take place on the premises 

between 23.00hrs and sunrise the next day. During this time there shall be no alcohol 
sales outside of the permitted hours shown on the licence. 

  
19. All tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable in the outside area by 23.00 each day. 

  
20. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme  shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

  
21. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: 
 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
 

 
page 419



Residential /
Proposed 
Residential

Other Uses

Under 
Construction

Proportion 
Residential 
of all Uses

Forset Court, 22-23 Nutford Place, London, W1H 5YQ

Data Source: Uniform Database
Date: 22/07/2015

10
Meters

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown copyright and/or database right 2013.
All rights reserved. Licence number LA 100019597

192

 Not known

Not known

Not known

page 420



p / n Name of Premises Premises Address Opening Hours

3624 Mahal Restaurant 138 Edgware Road London W2 2DZ
Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 
12:00 - 00:00

-19352 Safa Restaurant
Forset Court 22-23 Nutford Place London 
W1H 5YQ

Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 
12:00 - 00:00

-15277 Al Arez Cafe 103 Edgware Road London W2 2HX
Sunday to Wednesday 23:00 - 00:00 Thursday 
to Saturday 23:00 - 01:00

-7051 Grosvenor Victoria Casino 150 - 162 Edgware Road London W2 2DT Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

29171
Old English Gentleman Pub / Al Arez 
Express Grill & Bar 132 Edgware Road London W2 2DZ

Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to 
Thursday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 23:00

-4264 The Coffee Shop 150 - 162 Edgware Road London W2 2DT Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

3011 The Poker Room
Second Floor 150 Edgware Road London 
W2 2DT Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Premises within 75 metres of: Safa Restaurant, 22-23 Nutford Place

page 421



 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

page 422



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Westminster
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

licensing.vsw1@westminster.gov.uk

Telephone: 020 7641 8549 

* required information

Section 1 of 19

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use This is the unique reference for this 
application generated by the system.

Your reference 15/0001/FULL You can put what you want here to help you 
track applications if you make lots of them. It 
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Yes No

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for.

Applicant Details

* First name Ali

* Family name Heydari

* E-mail Aliheydari.safa@yahoo.co.uk

Main telephone number 07770 962220 Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.  
Applying as an individual means the 
applicant is applying so the applicant can be 
employed, or for some other personal reason, 
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business
* Is the applicant's business 
registered in the UK with 
Companies House?

Yes No

* Is the applicant's business 
registered outside the UK?

Yes No

* Business name Safa Restaurant
If the applicant's business is registered, use 
its registered name.

* VAT number - 8028 082 50 Put "none" if the applicant is not registered 
for VAT.

page 423



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

* Legal status Sole Trader

* Applicant's position in the
business Owner

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the applicant's 
headquarters are.

Applicant Business Address

* Building number or name Safa Restaurant

* Street Forset Court

District 22-23 Nutford Place

* City or town London

County or administrative area

* Postcode W1H 5YQ

* Country United Kingdom

If the applicant has one, this should be the 
applicant's official address - that is an 
address required of the applicant by law for 
receiving communications.

Agent Details

* First name Nigel 

* Family name Carter

* E-mail NDCLicensing@gmail.com

Main telephone number 07956 340856 Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.

Agent Business
* Is your business registered
in the UK with Companies 
House?

Yes No

* Is your business registered
outside the UK?

Yes No

* Business name Carter Consultancy
If your business is registered, use its 
registered name.

* VAT number - None Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

* Legal status Sole Trader

page 424



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

* Your position in the business Owner

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the headquarters of your 
business is located.

Agent Business Address

* Building number or name 41

* Street Coolgardie Avenue

District Highams Park

* City or town London

County or administrative area

* Postcode E4 9HP

* Country United Kingdom

If you have one, this should be your official 
address - that is an address required of you 
by law for receiving communications.

Section 2 of 19

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority 
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

Address OS map reference Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name Safa

Street Forset Court

District 22-23 Nutford Place

City or town London

County or administrative area

Postcode W1H 5YQ

Country United Kingdom

Further Details

Telephone number 020 7723 8331

Non-domestic rateable 
value of premises (£) 9,900

page 425



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Section 3 of 19

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

An individual or individuals

A limited company

A partnership

An unincorporated association

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act 

2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated 
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in 
England

The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

Confirm The Following

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves 
the use of the premises for licensable activities

I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by 
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 19

INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS

Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?

Yes No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details 
from section one, or amend them as required. 
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of 
details.

First name Ali

Family name Heydari

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?

Yes No

page 426



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Applicant Postal Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

Yes No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details 
from section one, or amend them as 
required.  Select “No” to enter a completely 
new set of details.

Building number or name Flat 2M Stuart Tower

Street 105 Maida Vale

District

City or town London

County or administrative area

Postcode W9 1UD

Country United Kingdom

Applicant Contact Details
Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?

Yes No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details 
from section one, or amend them as 
required.  Select “No” to enter a completely 
new set of details.

E-mail Aliheydari.safa@yahoo.co.uk

Telephone number 07770 962220

Other telephone number

Add another applicant

Section 5 of 19

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the 
premises licence to start? 01 / 09 / 2015

 dd               mm             yyyy

If you wish the licence to be 
valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end

/ /
 dd               mm             yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the 
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the 
premises.

The premises currently operates as a Ground Floor restaurant, with a premises licence (06/13160/WCCMAP), for the sale by 
retail of alcohol and the provision of late night refreshments. It is proposed that, if the new premises licence is granted, then 
the current premises licence will be surrendered to Westminster City Council.

page 427



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the 
premises at any one time, 
state the number expected to 
attend

Section 6 of 19

PROVISION OF PLAYS

Will you be providing plays?

Yes No

Section 7 of 19

PROVISION OF FILMS

Will you be providing films?

Yes No

Section 8 of 19

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

Yes No

Section 9 of 19

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

Yes No

Section 10 of 19

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

Will you be providing live music?

Yes No

Section 11 of 19

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

Will you be providing recorded music?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

page 428



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

THURSDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

FRIDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

SATURDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

SUNDAY

Start 12:00 End

Start End 01:30

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both?

Indoors Outdoors Both

Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

The recorded music will be played as 'background' music only, audible within the restaurant.

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed 
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

During the month of Ramadan, it is proposed that the playing of 'background' recorded music will continue until sunrise, 
when the provision of late night refreshments would also cease.

page 429



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 12 of 19

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

Will you be providing performances of dance?

Yes No

Section 13 of 19

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance?

Yes No

Section 14 of 19

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

WEDNESDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

THURSDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

FRIDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

SATURDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

page 430



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Start 23:00 End

Start End 01:00

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or 
both?

Indoors Outdoors Both Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

There are 10 tables and 20 chairs situated to the front of the restaurant, which are currently authorised under a Temporary 
Street Trading Licence. Food and beverages would be provided to customers seated in this area up until 23.00 hours, when 
the tables and chairs will then be rendered unusable. 

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

During the month of Ramadan, when Muslims are required to fast during daylight hours, it is proposed that late night 
refreshments will continue from 23.00 hours until sunrise the following day.

Section 15 of 19

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:00

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

page 431



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:00

WEDNESDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:00

THURSDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:00

FRIDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:00

SATURDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:00

SUNDAY

Start 12:00 End

Start End 01:00

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:

On the premises Off the premises Both

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on 
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol 
is for consumption away from the premises 
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for 
consumption on the premises and away 
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the 
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Alcohol may be sold or supplied on New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of 
permitted hours the following day.

page 432



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the 
licence as premises supervisor

Name

First name Ali

Family name Heydari

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name Flat 2M Stuart Tower

Street 105 Maida Vale

District

City or town London

County or administrative area

Postcode W9 1UD

Country United Kingdom

Personal Licence number 
(if known) 05/05972/LIPERS

Issuing licensing authority 
(if known) Westminster City Council

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises  supervisor 
be supplied to the authority? 

Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

As an attachment to this application

Reference number for consent 
form (if known)

If the consent form is already submitted, ask 
the proposed designated premises 
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your 
reference'.

Section 16 of 19

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give 
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example 
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

None

page 433



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 17 of 19

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

WEDNESDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

THURSDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

FRIDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

SATURDAY

Start 10:00 End

Start End 01:30

SUNDAY

Start 12:00 End

Start End 01:30

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.page 434



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

During the month of Ramadan, when Muslims are required to fast during daylight hours, it is proposed that the premises 
will remain open until sunrise the following day.

Section 18 of 19

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

MC34 All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no 
earlier than 30 minutes before the scheduled collection times. 

MC35 No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, 
removed from or placed in outside areas between (23.00) hours and 
(08.00) hours on the following day. 

MC60 The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage 
and/or private carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with 
contact numbers made readily available to customers who will be 
encouraged to use such services. 

MC66 The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 
(i) in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 
prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at the table 
using non disposable crockery, 
(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for 
immediate consumption, 
(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 
23.00, and 
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for 
consumption by persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there, and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the 
premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to 
their meal.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

MC01 The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as 
per the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. 
All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of 
every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall 
continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and 
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time 
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately 
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 
31 day period. 
MC02 A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of page 435



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...
the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises 
is open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised 
council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested.

c) Public safety

 
MC37 The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (including staff) shall not exceed 40 persons.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

MC19 All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by (23.00) each 
day. 
 
MC21 Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to 
respect the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area 
quietly 
 
MC12 No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted 
through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

e) The protection of children from harm

MC47 A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at 
the premises where the only acceptable forms of identification are 
recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, 
passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

Section 19 of 19

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises. 
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm 
Band A - No RV to £4300                         £100.00 
Band B - £4301 to £33000                       £190.00 
Band C - £33001 to £8700                       £315.00 
Band D - £87001 to £12500                     £450.00* 
Band E - £125001 and over                     £635.00* 
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises then you are required to pay a higher fee   
Band D - £87001 to £12500                     £900.00 
Band E - £125001 and over                     £1,905.00 
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls, 
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The 
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of 
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required. 
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment 
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college. 
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time 
Capacity 5000-9999                                 £1,000.00 
Capacity 10000 -14999                            £2,000.00 

page 436



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...
Capacity 15000-19999                             £4,000.00 
Capacity 20000-29999                             £8,000.00 
Capacity 30000-39000                             £16,000.00 
Capacity 40000-49999                             £24,000.00 
Capacity 50000-59999                             £32,000.00 
Capacity 60000-69999                             £40,000.00 
Capacity 70000-79999                             £48,000.00 
Capacity 80000-89999                             £56,000.00 
Capacity 90000 and over                         £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00

DECLARATION
1

* I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the 
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name Nigel Carter

* Capacity Licensing Consultant & Agent

* Date 23 / 06 / 2015
 dd               mm             yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to  https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/westminster/apply-1 to upload this file and 
continue with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD 
SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION 
WITH THIS APPLICATION

page 437



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number 15/0001/FULL

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed

< Previous 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Next >

page 438



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

 

City of Westminster 
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part A 

WARD: Bryanston And 
Dorset Square 

UPRN: 999000131551 

Premises licence 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
06/13160/WCCMAP 

 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Safa Restaurant 
Forset Court 
22-23 Nutford Place 
London 
W1H 5YQ 
 

Telephone Number: 0207 723 8331 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
N/A 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Regulated Entertainment 
- Playing of Recorded Music 
- Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 

kind for consideration and with a view to profit 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Regulated Entertainment:         
- Playing of Recorded Music: Unrestricted 
- Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 

kind for consideration and with a view to profit: Unrestricted 
Late Night Refreshment: Monday to Saturday - 10:00 to 00:30  
Late Night Refreshment: Sunday - 23:00 to 00:00  
Sale by Retail of Alcohol: Monday to Saturday - 10:00 to 00:00  
Sale by Retail of Alcohol: Sunday - 12:00 to 23:30  
 
For times authorised for Christmas, New Year and Good Friday see conditions at Annex 1 
 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Saturday - 10:00 to 00:30  
Sunday - 12:00 to 00:00  
 

 
 
 
 

page 439



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
On  
 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence: 
 
Mr Ali Heydari 
22/23 Nutford Place 
London 
W1H 5YH 
Telephone Number: 0207 723 8331 

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
N/A 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name: Ali Heydari 
Address: 22/23 Nutford Place, London, W1H 5YH 
Phone: Not Supplied 

 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol: 
 
Licence Number: Not Supplied 
Licensing Authority: Not Supplied 

 

 
 
 
Date:   _____________________________________ 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________ 
  Director of Legal & Administrative Services 

page 440



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
1.  No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence.  
 
2.  No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.   
 
3.  Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who hold a personal licence.   
 
Conditions reproducing the effect of conditions subject to which the relevant existing 
licenses have effect. 
 
Conditions related to Sale of Alcohol 
 
4.  Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to 

persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a person as an 
ancillary to his meal.  

 
5.  Suitable beverages other than intoxicating liquor (including drinking water) shall be 

equally available with or otherwise as an ancillary to meals served in the licensed 
premises. 

 
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the 
premises by specified enactments. 
 
6.  Alcohol may be sold or supplied: 
 
(a)  On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve from 10.00 

to 00.00 
 
(b)  On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, and on Good Friday: 

12.00 to 23:30 
 
(c)  On Christmas Day: 12.00 to 22.30 
 
(d)  On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 11.00 to 23.00 
 
(e)  On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12.00 to 22.30 
 
(f)  On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of 

permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the 
following day, midnight on 31st December). 

 
The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

 
(a)  during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from 

the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
 
(b)  during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on 

the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was supplied for 
consumption as ancillary to the meals; 

 
(c)  the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person residing 

in the licensed premises; 
 
(d)  the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the 

vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 
 
(e)  the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
 

page 441



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

(f)  the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the 
sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or 
an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces; 

 
(g)  the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; 
 
(h)  the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a 

person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or 
the consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied; 

 
(i)  the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for 

the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the 
consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their 
employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises. 

 
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed as 
including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 
 
7. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless the premises have been structurally and 

bona fide used, or intended to be used, for the purposes of habitually providing the 
customary main meal at midday or in the evening, or both, for the accommodation of 
persons frequenting the premises 

 
8. The terminal hour for late night refreshment on New Year’s Eve is extended to 05:00 

on New Year’s Day. 

page 442



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
 
None 

page 443



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
None 

page 444



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

Annex 4 – Plans 
 

page 445



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

 

 

City of Westminster 
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part B 

WARD: Bryanston And 
Dorset Square 

UPRN: 999000131551 

Premises licence 
summary 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
06/13160/WCCMAP 

 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Safa Restaurant 
Forset Court 
22-23 Nutford Place 
London 
W1H 5YQ 
 

Telephone Number: 0207 723 8331 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
N/A 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Regulated Entertainment 
- Playing of Recorded Music 
- Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 

kind for consideration and with a view to profit 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Regulated Entertainment:         
- Playing of Recorded Music: Unrestricted 
- Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 

kind for consideration and with a view to profit: Unrestricted 
Late Night Refreshment: Monday to Saturday - 10:00 to 00:30  
Late Night Refreshment: Sunday - 23:00 to 00:00  
Sale by Retail of Alcohol: Monday to Saturday - 10:00 to 00:00  
Sale by Retail of Alcohol: Sunday - 12:00 to 23:30  
 
For times authorised for Christmas, New Year and Good Friday see conditions at Annex 1 
 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Saturday - 10:00 to 00:30  
Sunday - 12:00 to 00:00  
 

 
 
 

page 446



MLR – Amended - 17/01/07 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
On  
 

  

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 
 
Mr Ali Heydari 
22/23 Nutford Place 
London 
W1H 5YH 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
N/A 
 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name: Ali Heydari 

 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 
Restricted 
 

 
 
 
Date:   _____________________________________ 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________ 
  Director of Legal & Administrative Services 
 

page 447



page 448



CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO  Licensing Officer 
 
REFERENCE  15/04997/LIPN 
 
 
FROM  EH Consultation Team 
REFERENCE  15/023475/EHCT 
BEING DEALT WITH BY Rebecca St. Rose (rstrose@westminster.gov.uk) 
TELEPHONE  020 7641 2291 
DATE  13th July 2015 
 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 
 
Safa Restaurant, 22-23 Nutford Place, W1 
 
I refer to the application for a New Premises Licence for the above premises. 
 
This representation is based on the plans and the operating schedule submitted.  There 
is a Premises Licence in existence for these Premises 06/13160/WCCMAP. 
 
The premises are located within the Edgware Road Stress Area. 
 
The applicant is seeking the following: 

 
1. To permit the provision of Recorded Music (indoors) on Monday to Saturday 

from 10:00 to 01:30, Sunday 12:00 to 01:30 and during the month of 
Ramadan that recorded music be permitted until sunrise. 
 

2. To permit the provision of Late Night Restaurant (Indoors and Outdoors) on 
Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 01:00 and during the month of Ramadan that 
late night refreshment be permitted until sunrise. 

 
 

3. To permit the Supply of Alcohol (On) on Monday to Saturday from 10:00 to 
01:00 and on Sunday from 12:00 to 01:00, and from the end of permitted 
hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours the following day. 

 
 
I wish to make Representations on the following grounds: 

 
1. The hours requested for the provision of recorded music (indoors) will have 

the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the Edgware 
Road Stress Area. The hour for sunrise during Ramadan is not a fixed time 
and may change from day to day. 
 

2. The hours requested for the provision of Late Night Refreshment (indoors and 
outdoors) will have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance 
within the Edgware Road Stress Area. The hour for sunrise during Ramadan 
is not a fixed time and may change from day to day. 

page 449



3. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the Edgware Road Stress Area. 

 
The applicant has supplied conditions within the Operating Schedule, these will be 
looked at but further conditions will be proposed by Environmental Health to address the 
Licensing Objectives and Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
 
 
Please contact me should you have any questions on the above. 
 
 
Rebecca St. Rose 
Environmental Health Officer 

page 450



 
 
From: Russell, Sandy  

Sent: 25 June 2015 15:53 
To: Nigel Carter 

Cc: Premises Licensing 
Subject: RE: 15/04997/LIPN (22 Nutford Place) 

 

Thanks Nigel, 
 
All provisionally agreed with us then. See you at the hearing. 
 
Best Wishes, 
 
Sandy 
 
From: Nigel Carter [mailto:nigel1201@outlook.com]  
Sent: 25 June 2015 15:50 

To: Russell, Sandy 
Subject: Re: 15/04997/LIPN (22 Nutford Place) 

 
Hi Sandy 
 
My client, Mr Heydari, is happy to comply with the conditions proposed.  
 
Kind regards  
 
Nigel  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On 25 Jun 2015, at 15:32, Russell, Sandy <srussell@westminster.gov.uk> wrote: 

  
Dear Mr Carter, 

  

I hope you are well. 

With reference to the above application, the Metropolitan Police, as a responsible 
authority, will be objecting to this application. It is our belief that if granted the 
application would undermine the Licensing Objectives. 
  
The venue is situated within the Edgware Road Stress Area, a locality where this is 
traditionally high crime and disorder. There are concerns that this application will cause 
further policing problems in an already demanding area and add to the cumulative 
impact.  
  

page 451

mailto:nigel1201@outlook.com
mailto:srussell@westminster.gov.uk


It is for this reasons that we are objecting to the application at this stage in the 
application process. The conditions shown below are those that police require be added 
to any future operating schedule, please let me know your thoughts in relation to them. 
Due to the times applied for and the location of the premises the matter would still need 
to be put before the sub-committee.  
  
Police conditions are as follows: 
  
  

1. The premises shall install and maintain a CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry and 
exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record 
whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a 
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the preceding 31 day period 
  

2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 
CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are 
open to the public.  This staff member shall be able to show Police recent 
data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  
  

3. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant (i) in which customers are 
shown to their table, (ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress 
service only, (iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that 
are prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at the table 
using non disposable crockery, (iv) which do not provide any take away 
service of food or drink for immediate consumption, (v) which do not provide 
any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and (vi) where alcohol 
shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial 
table meals there and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by 
such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

  
  
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the 
premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to 
their meal. 
  

4. During the month of Ramadan late night refreshment may take place on the 
premises between 23.00hrs and sunrise the next day. During this time there 
shall be no alcohol sales outside of the permitted hours shown on the licence. 

  

page 452



5. All tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable in the outside area by 23.00 
each day. 

  
6. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme  shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card 
with the PASS Hologram. 

  
7. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request 

to an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 
equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

  
The times applied for are not conducive to the Westminster Council’s Licensing policy, 
therefore the decision would be made by Sub-Committee 

      
  

If you have any questions or queries please feel free to get in touch.  
  
Kind Regards, 
  
Sandy  
  
  

PC Sandy Russell 4167CW  

Westminster Police Licensing Team  

4th Floor, 64 Victoria Street,  

LONDON, SW1E 6QP  

Tel: 0207 641 1721  

  
  
  

PC Sandy Russell 4167CW  

Westminster Police Licensing Team  

4th Floor, 64 Victoria Street,  

page 453



LONDON, SW1E 6QP  

Tel: 0207 641 1721  
  

 

 
*********************************************************************************** 
Help bring superfast fibre broadband to Westminster. Register your interest in getting 
superfast broadband in your area, visit https://www.westminster.gov.uk/broadband 
 
If you have a business in Westminster, we can take care of your commercial waste or 
recycling. 
Visit http://cleanstreets.westminster.gov.uk or call 020 7641 6180. 
 
*********************************************************************************** 
Westminster City Council: www.westminster.gov.uk 
*********************************************************************************** 
This E-Mail may contain information which is privileged, confidential and protected from 
disclosure. 
If you are not the intended recipient of this E-mail or any part of it, please telephone 
Westminster City Council immediately on receipt. 
You should not disclose the contents to any other person or take copies. 
*********************************************************************************** 
 

page 454

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/broadband
http://cleanstreets.westminster.gov.uk/
http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


page 455



page 456


	Agenda
	1 22-25 Kingly Street and 14-16 Fouberts Place, W1
	2 Rupert Street Cafe Bar, 50 Rupert Street, W1
	Rupert Street Cafe Bar 50 Rupert Street Part 2
	Rupert Street Cafe Bar 50 Rupert Street Part 3

	3 Raging Ball Snooker and Sports Club (Basement), 159-163 Edgware Road, W2
	4 Pix, 16 Bateman Street, W1
	5 Safa Restaurant, Forset Court, 22-23 Nutford Place, W1
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	Appendix A
	Licence & Appeal History
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

	Safa Restaurant Report for Callover.pdf
	Report
	PIV MAP
	Nutford Place, 22-23, Safa Restaurant
	Sheet1

	BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
	application form
	Current Licence
	plans
	eh rep
	CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM
	TO  Licensing Officer
	REFERENCE  15/04997/LIPN
	DATE  13th July 2015


	Police Representation
	Photo 1
	Photo 2





